
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

December 13, 2018 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Roll Call. 

 Pledge of Allegiance  

Approval of Minutes: November 8, 2018 

Final Plats 

Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-1218-57 Suzanne Mosley Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey of Lot 

76 of Nicholls Canyon Subdivision on Woodlane Circle. The Purpose 
for This Request Is to Subdivide Lot Into four Lots. The Property Is 
Owned By Suzanne Mosley and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 

 
(2) P-1218-58 City of Vestavia Hills Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey 

of Lot at 1290 Montgomery Hwy. The Purpose for This Request Is to 
Resurvey Existing Lots. The Property Is Owned By the City of Vestavia 
and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2. 

 
(3) P-1218-59 Overton Village Condos, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 

Resurvey Of Lot 1 of Overton Village. The Purpose for This Request Is 
to Subdivide Lot 1 Into two Lots. The Property Is Owned By Overton 
Village Condos, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2. 

 
(4) P-1218-60 Wedgworth Reality, Inc. Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 

Resurveying of Walnut Hill Subdivision. The Purpose for This Request 
Is to Resurvey Lot at 1644 Shades Crest Road Into Thirteen Single Family 
Residential Lots. The Property Is Owned By Wedgworth Reality, Inc. and 
Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2. 

 
 
Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations 
 



Annexations

(5) P-1218-50 Barbara French Is Requesting Rezoning for 3421 Coventry Drive from 
Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation

(6) P-1218-51 Alan & Patricia Foster Are Requesting Rezoning for 3531 Valley Circle
from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation

(7) P-1218-52 Jason Sparks Is Requesting Rezoning for 2532 Skyland Drive from 
Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation

(8) P-1218-53 Overton Investments, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning for 3771 Fairhaven 
Drive & for 3783 Fairhaven Drive from Vestavia Hills INST to 
Vestavia Hills R-9. For The Purpose Of New, Custom Townhomes. 

(9) P-1218-55 Marc Perlman Overton Condos, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning for 3791
Poe Drive from Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9. For The 
Purpose Of a Townhouse Development.

(10) P-1218-54 Vestavia Country Club Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for the 
Construction of a Maintenance Building and a Storage Building 
Located At 445 Vesclub Drive. The Property Is Owned By Vestavia 
Country Club and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2.



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

NOVEMBER 8, 2018

6:00 P.M.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this 
date at 6:00 P.M. following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The roll was called 
with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Erica Barnes, Chair
Blaine House, Vice-Chair
Lyle Larson
Hasting Sykes
Fred Goodwin
Cheryl Cobb
Johnathan Romeo

MEMBERS ABSENT: Rusty Weaver
Greg Gilchrist

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner
Christopher Brady, City Engineer

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Larson stated that the minutes of the meeting of October 11, 2018 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes was by Mr. Larson and second was by Mr. House.
Voice vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Final Plats



P-1118-48 Daniel/Rime Patchwork Farms, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval 
For Resurvey Of Patchwork Farms Lot 3B. The Purpose For This 
Request Is To Amend Setbacks.  The Property Is Owned By Daniel/Rime 
Patchwork Farms, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PUD PB.

Mr. Garrison stated a list of conditions. Steve Monk, representative for the applicant agreed.

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to approve Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of 
Patchwork Farms Lot 3B with the following conditions:
A. Recorded affidavit to be presented and recording information noted on the plat that includes 
an alta survey showing exact locations of all buildings on the southern portion of the property as 
well as the buildings adjacent to the Rocky Ridge Fire Station or noted setbacks on the plat 
showing exact setbacks at the various encroachment locations
B. Variances granted & approval dates 
C. Zoning must be amended on plat to read VH PUD-PB.
Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Consent Agenda

P-1118-43 Jon & Diane Nickolson Are Requesting Final Plat Approval For
Resurvey Of Lots 36 & 38 Rosemont Subdivision. The Purpose For 
This Request Is To Combine Lots.  The Property Is Owned By Jon & 
Diane Nickolson and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

P-1118-44 Adam Rhodes, Steve Silver, & Derrick Mills Are Requesting Final Plat 
Approval For Resurvey Of Lots 5, 6, 4A, & 17A of Rosemont 
Subdivision. The Purpose For This Request Is To Resurvey Lot Lines.
The Property Is Owned By Adam Rhodes, Steve Silver, & Derrick Mills 
and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

P-1118-45 Rollins Montgomery Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of 
Lots 21 & 22 Rosemont Subdivision. The Purpose For This Request Is 
To Combine Lots. The Property Is Owned By Rollins Montgomery and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

P-1118-46 Patrick Barrett & Lewis Hunt Are Requesting Final Plat Approval For
Resurvey Of Lots 35, 39, & 40 Rosemont Subdivision. The Purpose For 
This Request Is To Resurvey Lot Lines.  The Property Is Owned By 
Patrick Barrett & Lewis Hunt and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.



P-1118-47 Veronica Dent Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lot 
5A of Old Overton. The Purpose For This Request Is To Subdivide One 
Lot Into Two.  The Property Is Owned By Veronica Dent and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills PR-1.

P-1118-49 Murphy Home Builders Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey 
Of Lot 16 of  South Bend Subdivision. The Purpose For This Request Is 
To Amend Easements.  The Property Is Owned By Veronica Dent and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills R-9.

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to approve P-1118-43, P-1118-44, P-1118-45, P-1118-
46, P-1118-47, P-1118-49. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Romeo – yes 
Mr. Larson – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

P-1018-33 Richard Pennino Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for Outdoor 
Recreation Located At 2301 Old Columbiana Rd. The Property Is 
Owned By Richard Pennino And Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request.

Mr. Pennino led a presentation requesting outdoor activities for his crossfit gym. 

Ms. Barnes asked if outdoor music would be included. Mr. Pennino said none, other than special 
events.

Mr. Goodwin asked how many members used the facility. Mr. Pennino answered 200.

Ms. Barnes asked Mr. Pennino what his hours of operations were for outdoor activites. He
responded, 5:45-7:45 M-F and 9-11 Saturday.

Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.

David Cutchen, 2315 Old Columbiana Rd. spoke in opposition due to noise.

Steve McCombs and Clarice Jackson spoke in support.

Jennifer Harris, 2241 Jacobs Rd., spoke in opposition.

Bryan DeMarco, 2313 Old Columbiana Rd., spoke in support.

Claudette Gold, 2250 Jacobs Rd., spoke in opposition.



Mary Julie, 1801 Jacobs Rd., spoke in opposition.

Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. House made a motion to recommend Conditional Use approval for Outdoor 
Recreation for 2301 Old Columbiana Rd. with the following conditions:

1. No outdoor noise before 8AM and 9PM, M-F; before 
9AM and after 5PM, Sat

2. Batting cages are prohibited
3. No amplified music outside of building
4. Any changes to outdoor lighting to be approved by 

DRB.
Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-1118-42 Mark A. Hancock Is Requesting Rezoning for 4517 Pine Tree Cir. from
Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills O-1 For The Purpose Of Office 
Development.

Mr. Garrison Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request.

Justin Collier, architect for the applicant, stated the rezoning would be for a new office building.

Ms. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Ms. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 4517 Pine Tree Cir.
from Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1. Second was by Mr. Sykes. Motion was carried on a 
roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



Planning and Zoning Minutes
Page 5



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-57

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lots 76 of Nicholls
Canyon Subdivision.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Woodlane Circle

APPLICANT/OWNER: Suzanne Moseley

REPRESENTING AGENT: Ralph C. Moseley

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey lot 76 into four lots (Lots 1, 2, 3, &
4). Lots will be accessed by a common private drive and cul-de-sac. All lots meet the 
minimum requirements for R-2 zoning, including cul-de-sac radius. All existing
easements will remain.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with
the plan for medium density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted

















CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-59

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lot 1 of Overton
Village.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Poe Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Village Condos, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Schoel Engineering Company, Inc

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey lot 1 into two lots (Lots 1-A & 1-B).
The shared lot line is also the municipal line between Vestavia and Mountain Brook. All
existing setbacks will remain and a sanitary sewer easement on the north end of Lot
1-A and on the west and north end of Lot 1-B. Mountain Brook P&Z must also approve.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted

1









CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-60

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Resurveying of Walnut Hill
Subdivision.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1644 Shades Crest Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: Wedgworth Reality, Inc

REPRESENTING AGENT: Michael W. Wedgworth

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is finalizing Walnut Hill rezoning/subdivision.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with
the plan for medium density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted

1









CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-50

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3421 Coventry Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Barbara C. French

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2797. Applicant is requesting the compatible
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

1









CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-51

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3531 Valley Circle

APPLICANT/OWNER: Alan & Patricia Foster

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2798. Applicant is requesting the compatible
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

1









CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-52

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2532 Skyland Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Jason Sparks

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2799. Applicant is requesting the compatible
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

1









CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-53

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3771 & 3783 Fairhaven Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Investments, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3771 and 3783 Fairhaven
Drive from INST to R-9. The applicant would like to build 3 new townhomes on
3771 Fairhaven Drive and also build 4 luxury townhomes on 3783 Fairhaven Drive.
The setbacks for both properties would be 30’ in the front, 25’ in the rear and 5’ on
the sides. All current easements will remain and the property would be re-platted at
the conclusion of zoning.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The Community Plan call for
Institutional Uses for these two sites, however, this was written when the assisted care
facility owned the lots.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

1



































1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-55

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3791 Poe Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Marc Perlman with Overton Condos, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3791 Poe Drive from B-2
to R-9. The applicant would like to construct a townhouse development, building 5 
townhomes on the property as a companion piece to a Mountain Brook Condo project 
to the rear. Both projects would share a drive, allowing access to both Poe and 
Fairhaven Drives. Proposed setbacks are Front- 12’, rear- 20’, Sides- 0’. There is an 
11.95’ separation between townhomes and adjacent property to the south. All current 
easements will remain.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 











V
ic

in
ity

 M
ap

.d
gn

 1
1/

8/
20

18
 8

:4
5:

17
 A

M







1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-54

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Construction Of 
Maintenance Building & Storage Building Of Vestavia Country Club.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 445 Vesclub Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Vestavia Country Club

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is currently the home of Vestavia Country 
Club. The applicants seek to build two buildings, a maintenance building and a 
storage building. Applicants propose maintaining a tree buffer next to adjacent
residential. The property is currently zoned R-2.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation: 
a. Approval based on the site plan presented.
b. Tree save buffer cannot be removed or altered
c. No exterior lighting

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: Fire hydrant or FTC required for building

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









20
18

-1
1-

07
 C

on
di

tio
na

l U
se

 E
xh

ib
it.

dg
n 

11
/8

/2
01

8 
8:

52
:5

3 
A

M




